
500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 4 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order – Mayor

a. Pledge of Allegiance

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum

c. Invocation

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall be 

the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens present. 

The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have not been previously 

reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the religious beliefs or 

views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is maintained by the Town Clerk’s Office 

and interested persons should contact the Town Clerk’s Office for further information. 

B. Call to the Public – Mayor

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the conclusion 

of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond to criticism 

made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 

ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public Body shall not 

discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters 

are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

C. Consent Agenda - Mayor

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Member 

of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council Members 

may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items removed from 

the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the agenda, unless 

called out of sequence. 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

Thursday, October 24, 2024, at 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 4 

C.1 Consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on October 10, 

2024.

C.2 Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

D. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time. 

E. New Business Before Council - Mayor

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen who wishes may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time.  

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Spencer Forsberg]: Mr. Forsberg will present the Town’s 

financials for the month of August. 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Building Official, Dr. Johnson]: Presentation to the Council 

concerning Notices of Code Violations issued over the past month. 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [Building Official, Dr. Johnson]: Presentation to the Council

concerning proposed abatement of hazardous conditions at 200 Pima Street. The Council will

be asked to approve the proposed abatement of weeds in the amount of $2,757.50.

E.4 Discussion and/or Action [Building Official, Dr. Johnson]: Presentation to the Council

concerning proposed abatement of hazardous conditions at 303 E. Apache Street. The Council

will be asked to approve the proposed abatement of weeds in the amount of $ 347.50.

E.5 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of Ordinance 2024-02 - AN

ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN CODE, TITLE 6 “ANIMALS,” CHAPTER 6.15

“RULES AND REGULATIONS,” TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF ANIMALS PER HOUSEHOLD

TO FIVE; ADDING PROVISIONS AGAINST ANIMAL HOARDING; AND AUTHORIZING HOUSING OF UP

TO SIX CHICKENS.

E.6 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of Ordinance 2024-03 - AN

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL

REGULATIONS,” SECTION 18.100.260 “KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK AND PETS,” TO REVISE ZONING

REGULATIONS FOR KEEPING LIVESTOCK AND PROVIDING FOR THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC

CHICKENS.

E.7 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of Ordinance 2024-04 - AN

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.35 “R-1 RESIDENTIAL

DISTRICTS,” SECTION 18.35.030 “PERMITTED CONDITIONAL USES”, AND CHAPTER 18.10

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 4 

“DEFINITIONS” TO DEFINE VACATION RENTALS AND SHORT-TERM RENTALS AND TO MAKE THEM 

CONDITIONAL USES. 

E.8 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of Ordinance 2024-05 - AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL 

REGULATIONS,” TO ADD NEW SECTION 18.100.290 “HOOPHOUSES AND POLYHOUSES”, AND 

CHAPTER 18.10 “DEFINITIONS” TO DEFINE HOOPHOUSES AND POLYHOUSES AND TO ESTABLISH 

REGULATIONS CONCERNING THEIR CONSTRUCTION, PLACEMENT AND USE.  “Hoophouse or 

polyhouse” means a greenhouse used exclusively for producing and storing live plants. 

E.9 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Second reading of Ordinance 2024-06 - AN

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.135 “AMENDMENTS,”

SECTION 18.135.030 “APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENT,” AND SECTION 18.135.060 “PROTEST

AGAINST AMENDMENTS,” TO ESTABLISH REGULATIONS CONCERNING THE FILING, PROCESSING

AND PROTESTING OF ZONING AMENDMENTS.

E.10 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Proclamation 2024 -18: A PROCLAMATION OF

THE MAYOR, DECLARING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER, 2024, AS “NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE

MONTH.”

E.11 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Proclamation 2024 -19: A PROCLAMATION OF

THE MAYOR, DECLARING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER, 2024, AS “MILITARY FAMILY APPRECIATION

MONTH.”

F. Reports of Current Events by Council

G. Adjournment

Posted at 5:00 PM on October __, 2024, at the following locations: 
Town Hall Bulletin Board 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd.  

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Town Hall Lobby 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Town Website 

https://huachucacityaz.gov 

Huachuca City U.S. Post 

Office 

690 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Library  

506 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Police 

Department 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Ms. Brandye Thorpe 

Town Clerk 

Note:  This meeting is open to the public.  All interested people are welcome to attend. A copy of agenda 

background material provided to the Councilmembers, with the exception of confidential material 

relating to possible executive sessions, is available for public inspection at the Town Clerk’s Office, 500 N. 

Gonzales Blvd., Huachuca City, AZ 85616, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or online at 

www.huachucacityaz.gov 

Individuals with disabilities who need a reasonable accommodation to attend or communicate at a town 

meeting, or who require this information in alternate format, may contact the Town at 456-1354 (TTY 456-

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ
https://huachucacityaz.gov/
http://www.huachucacityaz.gov/


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 4 of 4 

1353) to make their needs known.  Requests should be made as early as possible so there is sufficient time 

to respond. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 6 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City 

A. Call to Order – Mayor

a. Pledge of Allegiance

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum

B. Roll Call.

Roll Call. 

Present: Johann Wallace, Christy Hirshberg, Debra Trate, Cynthia Butterworth, Danielle 

Cardella, Town Manager Suzanne Harvey (Not voting), Town Clerk Brandye Thorpe (not 

voting), Town Attorney Thomas Benavidez (Not voting). 

Absent:  

c. Invocation

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall 

be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens 

present. The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have not been 

previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the 

religious beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is maintained by the 

Town Clerk’s Office and interested persons should contact the Town Clerk’s Office for further 

information. 

B. Call to the Public – Mayor

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the conclusion 

of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond to criticism 

made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 

ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public Body shall not 

discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters 

are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

MEETING MINUTES OF THE  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL 

October 10, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 6 

C. Consent Agenda - Mayor

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Member 

of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council Members 

may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items removed from 

the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the agenda, unless 

called out of sequence. 

C.1 Consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on September 26, 

2024.

C.2 Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

Motion: Items listed on the consent agenda Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved 

by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Debra Trate. 

Motion: Approval of the items on the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, moved by Johann 

Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

D. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

mayor at any time. 

E. New Business Before Council - Mayor

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time.  

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Authorizing the Town Manager to modify 

the Financial Consultant Services contract with Ruben A Villa & Associates, LLC, to expand the 

scope of work to include additional accounting services. 

Motion: Item E.1 Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Manager Harvey explains that Spencer Forsberg is currently performing the duties that would 

be added to this contract, however he is not experienced with municipal accounting. She has 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 6 

spoken with the Town Attorney and the auditors, who both agree this would be a better 

solution for the Town. 

Mayor Wallace expresses concern that if Ruben is working an additional 30-35 hour per week 

for us, will fatigue be a problem based on his workload that includes other clients. 

Manager Harvey advises that she does not believe it will be a problem, and in fact Ruben will 

look for work with another agency to fill this if we don’t do it. 

Motion: Authorizing the Town Manager to modify the Financial Consultant Services contract 

with Ruben A Villa & Associates, LLC, to expand the scope of work to include additional 

accounting services., Action: Approve, moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Cynthia 

Butterworth. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Update on the plans for the Town’s annual 

Halloween “Creepy Candy Crawl.” 

Motion: Item E.2 Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Manager Harvey provides an update on plans, including having the bus pick people up from 

the Activity Center and drive them down to the Community Center, setup to begin at 4:30, 

event beginning at 6pm. There will also be snakes and spiders. 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [Attorney Benavidez]: Brief refresher on the rules prohibiting 

use of Town resources to influence an election. 

Motion: Item E.3 Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Mayor Wallace advises that with the election coming up, he asked the Attorney to do this to 

remind Council and staff of what can and can’t be allowed by law. 

Attorney Benavidez reads a portion of statute and explains that no Town official is allowed to 

tell anyone how to vote. He provides a couple of examples for clarity. 

Mayor Wallace reiterated that no town official can attempt to sway an election.  

E.4 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Council discussion regarding the facility use

agreement with Huachuca City School. The purpose of this agreement is to permit the parties

to use each other’s buildings and grounds to provide organized programs of recreation and

educational activities that contribute to the physical, mental, and moral welfare of the citizens

of the community. The current agreement is due to expire in June, 2026.

Motion: Item E.4 Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Mayor Wallace advises that he wanted to make sure that the current agreement included 

everything that would be needed, especially the pool, in the event that the school wanted to 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 4 of 6 

use it. After reviewing it, he believes that it does but would like to confirm that with our 

insurance providers and also the school. 

Motion: Get with Dr. Cox and Mr. Powers to review it and make sure everything is covered, 

Action: Direct Staff, moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Cynthia Butterworth. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

E.5 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: Discussion regarding a potential 

collaboration with Huachuca City School to create a mountain bike skill course on school 

property. 

Motion: Item E.5 Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Mayor Wallace advises that he was approached by the school to see if the Town would like to 

work with them on this. The school was approached about a possible grant to make it possible. 

He would Council to allow continuing discussions about it and see where it goes. 

Motion: Ongoing discussions with the school and bring back any action to be taken, Action: 

Approve, moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Cynthia Butterworth. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

E.6 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: First reading of Ordinance 2024-02 - AN

ORDINANCE ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN CODE, TITLE 6 “ANIMALS,” CHAPTER 6.15

“RULES AND REGULATIONS,” TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF ANIMALS PER HOUSEHOLD

TO FIVE; ADDING PROVISIONS AGAINST ANIMAL HOARDING; AND AUTHORIZING HOUSING OF

UP TO SIX CHICKENS.

Attorney Benavidez advises that he changed some of it because state law only states that 

properties less than an acre can have chickens, but our code allows them on four or more 

acres. He believes they should also be allowed on properties between 1-4 acres, and made 

the changes to reflect that. 

E.7 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: First reading of Ordinance 2024-03 - AN

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL

REGULATIONS,” SECTION 18.100.260 “KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK AND PETS,” TO REVISE ZONING

REGULATIONS FOR KEEPING LIVESTOCK AND PROVIDING FOR THE KEEPING OF DOMESTIC

CHICKENS.

E.8 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: First reading of Ordinance 2024-04 - AN

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.35 “R-1 RESIDENTIAL

DISTRICTS,” SECTION 18.35.030 “PERMITTED CONDITIONAL USES”, AND CHAPTER 18.10

“DEFINITIONS” TO DEFINE VACATION RENTALS AND SHORT-TERM RENTALS AND TO MAKE THEM

CONDITIONAL USES.

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 5 of 6 

E.9 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: First reading of Ordinance 2024-05 - AN

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL

REGULATIONS,” TO ADD NEW SECTION 18.100.290 “HOOPHOUSES AND POLYHOUSES”, AND

CHAPTER 18.10 “DEFINITIONS” TO DEFINE HOOPHOUSES AND POLYHOUSES AND TO ESTABLISH

REGULATIONS CONCERNING THEIR CONSTRUCTION, PLACEMENT AND USE.  “Hoophouse or

polyhouse” means a greenhouse used exclusively for producing and storing live plants.

E.10 Discussion and/or Action [Mayor Wallace]: First reading of Ordinance 2024-05 - AN

ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN CODE TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.135 “AMENDMENTS,”

SECTION 18.135.030 “APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENT,” AND SECTION 18.135.060 “PROTEST

AGAINST AMENDMENTS,” TO ESTABLISH REGULATIONS CONCERNING THE FILING, PROCESSING

AND PROTESTING OF ZONING AMENDMENTS.

Mayor Wallace corrects this. The Ordinance number is 2024-06. 

F. Reports of Current Events by Council

Councilmember Butterworth- Will be at the Creepy Candy Crawl. Food distribution is back to 

the third Friday of each month again. The last MPO meeting of the year will be on October 

26th. 

Mayor Wallace- He attended the Antioch 10 year anniversary for their Pastor on Saturday. 

Monday he will be at the Sonoita Veneyard. On the 18th is the Hispanic Chamber Mixer and on 

the 19th is the Boys and Girls Club event on Ft. Huachuca. 

Councilmember Cardella- Will be at the Boys and Girls Club event on the 19th. 

Councilmember Trate- Attended the SSVEC focus group. 

Mayor ProTem Hirshberg-Will be at the Boys and Girls Club event and the Creepy Candy 

Crawl. 

G. Adjournment

Motion: To Adjourn, Action: Adjourn, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy 

Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Approved by Mayor Johann R. Wallace on October 24, 2024. 

____________________________________ 

Mr. Johann R. Wallace 

Mayor 

Attest: _________________________________________ 

Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

Town Clerk 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 6 of 6 

Seal: 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Meeting for 

the Huachuca City Town Council held on October 10, 2024. I further certify that the meeting 

was duly called and a quorum was present. 

____________________________________ 

Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

Town Clerk 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     1

Report dates: 10/9/2024-10/31/2024 Oct 23, 2024  10:24AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

Arrowhead Forensics

10318 Arrowhead Forensics 39711 10x  ArrowHead Forensics Blood 10/10/2024 83.87 83.87 10-51-440

  Total Arrowhead Forensics: 83.87 83.87

AZ Department of Environmental Quality

10472 AZ Department of Environmental  0000414599X MAP Monitoring Assistance Progr 10/01/2024 2,087.55 2,087.55 51-40-516

  Total AZ Department of Environmental Quality: 2,087.55 2,087.55

Az State Treasurer

1274 Az State Treasurer 633 monthly conversions 10/04/2024 3,980.02 3,980.02 20-40-200

  Total Az State Treasurer: 3,980.02 3,980.02

Benavidez Law Group, P.C.

1667 Benavidez Law Group, P.C. 75711 Attorney Fees 10/10/2024 3,976.50 3,976.50 10-42-220

1667 Benavidez Law Group, P.C. 75718 Attorney Fees 10/10/2024 4,249.50 4,249.50 10-42-220

  Total Benavidez Law Group, P.C.: 8,226.00 8,226.00

Caselle, Inc

1745 Caselle, Inc 135801 Contract Support and Maintenanc 10/01/2024 883.15 883.15 10-48-210

1745 Caselle, Inc 135801 Contract Support and Maintenanc 10/01/2024 49.06 49.06 51-40-480

1745 Caselle, Inc 135801 Contract Support and Maintenanc 10/01/2024 52.99 52.99 52-40-480

1745 Caselle, Inc 135801 Contract Support and Maintenanc 10/01/2024 62.80 62.80 55-40-480

  Total Caselle, Inc: 1,048.00 1,048.00

Caterpillar Financial Services Corp.

10620 Caterpillar Financial Services Cor 36012273 D6T/NDY00479 10/08/2024 3,450.87 3,450.87 55-40-705

10620 Caterpillar Financial Services Cor 36012273 816K/WNB00251 10/08/2024 3,313.82 3,313.82 55-40-705

  Total Caterpillar Financial Services Corp.: 6,764.69 6,764.69

CenturyLink

4280 CenturyLink 2648-10/4/24 Local Phone Service - Town Hall 10/07/2024 345.47 345.47 10-43-271

4280 CenturyLink 9728-10/7/24 Local Phone Service - Police Dept 10/07/2024 233.70 233.70 10-51-271

4280 CenturyLink 0501-10/7/24 Local Phone Service 10/07/2024 67.12 67.12 10-57-271

4280 CenturyLink 6652-10/7/24 Local Phone Service - Library 10/07/2024 94.03 94.03 10-62-271

  Total CenturyLink: 740.32 740.32

Cintas Corporation No. 445

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4207413312 Office Supplies 10/07/2024 71.47 71.47 10-43-460

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4208118667 Office Supplies 10/14/2024 58.85 58.85 10-43-460

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4207413258 Uniforms- PW 10/07/2024 11.40 11.40 10-57-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4208118670 Uniforms- PW 10/14/2024 11.40 11.40 10-57-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4207413258 Uniforms- Water 10/07/2024 51.26 51.26 51-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4208118670 Uniforms- Water 10/14/2024 51.26 51.26 51-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4207413258 Uniforms- Sewer 10/07/2024 51.26 51.26 52-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4208118670 Uniforms- Sewer 10/14/2024 51.26 51.26 52-40-410



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     2

Report dates: 10/9/2024-10/31/2024 Oct 23, 2024  10:24AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4207413276 Landfill Supplies 10/07/2024 13.27 13.27 55-40-290

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4208118662 Landfill Supplies 10/14/2024 13.29 13.29 55-40-290

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4207413276 Landfill Uniforms 10/07/2024 24.78 24.78 55-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4207413312 Uniforms- LF 10/07/2024 77.96 77.96 55-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4208118662 Landfill Uniforms 10/14/2024 24.76 24.76 55-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4208118667 Landfill Uniforms 10/14/2024 77.61 77.61 55-40-410

  Total Cintas Corporation No. 445: 589.83 589.83

City of Sierra Vista

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5055 Fuel AD 10/07/2024 20.12 20.12 10-43-475

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5036 SEACOM 09/30/2024 20,487.50 20,487.50 10-51-222

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5055 Fuel PD 10/07/2024 885.23 885.23 10-51-475

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5055 Fuel LB 10/07/2024 28.36 28.36 10-62-476

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5055 Fuel HC 10/07/2024 265.43 265.43 10-65-475

1702 City of Sierra Vista 5055 Fuel Post Bus 10/07/2024 1,033.24 1,033.24 65-40-475

  Total City of Sierra Vista: 22,719.88 22,719.88

Cochise County Treasurer

1867 Cochise County Treasurer 632 Monthly Court Conversion 10/04/2024 21.80 21.80 20-40-200

  Total Cochise County Treasurer: 21.80 21.80

COX Business

10695 COX Business 28301/100124 Internet Town Hall 10/01/2024 1,000.00 1,000.00 10-48-481

  Total COX Business: 1,000.00 1,000.00

Elite Sales and Service, LLC

2130 Elite Sales and Service, LLC INV-46815 pm service on d8 dozer 10/04/2024 1,459.68 1,459.68 55-40-460

2130 Elite Sales and Service, LLC INV-46966 Repair and Replace Bolts for the 10/15/2024 538.60 538.60 55-40-610

2130 Elite Sales and Service, LLC INV-46967 Replace/Repair  Manifold and Adj 10/15/2024 3,175.22 3,175.22 55-40-610

  Total Elite Sales and Service, LLC: 5,173.50 5,173.50

Empire Southwest, LLC

2220 Empire Southwest, LLC EPCT0002019 Renew contract 2024 - 2025 for th 10/09/2024 709.25 709.25 10-57-500

2220 Empire Southwest, LLC EPCT0002019 Renew Empire Power Contract  2 10/09/2024 978.25 978.25 51-40-650

  Total Empire Southwest, LLC: 1,687.50 1,687.50

Haymore & Forsberg CPA

10052 Haymore & Forsberg CPA 4882 Accounting Services Admin 10/08/2024 2,152.15 2,152.15 10-43-650

10052 Haymore & Forsberg CPA 4882 Accounting Services Magistrate 10/08/2024 179.40 179.40 10-45-650

10052 Haymore & Forsberg CPA 4882 Accounting Services Road User 10/08/2024 269.10 269.10 23-40-650

10052 Haymore & Forsberg CPA 4882 Accounting Services Water 10/08/2024 1,613.95 1,613.95 51-40-650

10052 Haymore & Forsberg CPA 4882 Accounting Services Sewer 10/08/2024 1,209.00 1,209.00 52-40-650

10052 Haymore & Forsberg CPA 4882 Accounting Services Landfill 10/08/2024 1,076.40 1,076.40 55-40-650

  Total Haymore & Forsberg CPA: 6,500.00 6,500.00

Holly Shutta

10802 Holly Shutta 100324 Water Refund 10/03/2024 14.32 14.32 51-21350

10802 Holly Shutta 100324 Sewer Refund 10/03/2024 25.00 25.00 52-21350



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     3

Report dates: 10/9/2024-10/31/2024 Oct 23, 2024  10:24AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

  Total Holly Shutta: 39.32 39.32

Kustom Signals, Inc

10192 Kustom Signals, Inc 615169 Eagle 3 Radar Units 10/08/2024 9,371.01 9,371.01 11-40-810

  Total Kustom Signals, Inc: 9,371.01 9,371.01

Legend Technical Services of Arizona Inc

10774 Legend Technical Services of Ariz 2416322 Drinking Water Sample 10/07/2024 54.00 54.00 51-40-510

  Total Legend Technical Services of Arizona Inc: 54.00 54.00

Mr. Shed Inc.

2968 Mr. Shed Inc. 1611 Rent tractor and brush hog for co 09/26/2024 1,984.51 1,984.51 52-40-650

  Total Mr. Shed Inc.: 1,984.51 1,984.51

Patricia Bryant

10803 Patricia Bryant 101124 Water Refund 10/11/2024 38.71 38.71 51-21350

10803 Patricia Bryant 101124 Sewer Refund 10/11/2024 25.00 25.00 52-21350

  Total Patricia Bryant: 63.71 63.71

Principal Life Insurance Co

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 090124 employee benefit 08/18/2024 2,064.53 2,064.53 10-22530

4121 Principal Life Insurance Co 10/1-10/31 employee benefit 09/17/2024 693.75 693.75 10-22530

  Total Principal Life Insurance Co: 2,758.28 2,758.28

Quest Diagnostics

1070 Quest Diagnostics 9211959192 New Hire Drug Test 09/25/2024 111.90 111.90 10-43-465

  Total Quest Diagnostics: 111.90 111.90

Rapid Towing & Recovery

10027 Rapid Towing & Recovery 24-1006-14 DR#241006-06 impound tow 2020 10/07/2024 230.62 230.62 10-51-505

  Total Rapid Towing & Recovery: 230.62 230.62

Reliable Safety, LLC

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2247 Annual Inspection for 3 fire exting 09/26/2024 54.00 54.00 10-60-460

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2248 Annual inspection for five fire extin 09/26/2024 90.00 90.00 10-62-460

10317 Reliable Safety, LLC 2246 Annual Inspection of 4 fire extingu 09/26/2024 97.00 97.00 10-68-290

  Total Reliable Safety, LLC: 241.00 241.00

Ruben A. Villa

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-024-101324 Consulting Services- Admin 10/13/2024 869.13 869.13 10-43-360

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-024-101324 Consulting Services- Magistrate 10/13/2024 72.45 72.45 10-45-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-024-101324 Consulting Services- Road User 10/13/2024 108.68 108.68 23-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-024-101324 Consulting Services- Water 10/13/2024 651.79 651.79 51-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-024-101324 Consulting Services- Sewer 10/13/2024 488.25 488.25 52-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-024-101324 Consulting Services- Landfill 10/13/2024 434.70 434.70 55-40-650

  Total Ruben A. Villa: 2,625.00 2,625.00



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     4

Report dates: 10/9/2024-10/31/2024 Oct 23, 2024  10:24AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

Rugged Solutions America, LLC

10666 Rugged Solutions America, LLC 74886  Toughbook  10/07/2024 3,342.00 3,342.00 11-40-810

10666 Rugged Solutions America, LLC 74886 docking station for toughbook 10/07/2024 1,992.00 1,992.00 11-40-810

10666 Rugged Solutions America, LLC 74887 3 Toughbook MDCs 10/15/2024 10,026.00 10,026.00 11-40-810

10666 Rugged Solutions America, LLC 74887 2 docking stations for the toughbo 10/15/2024 3,013.53 3,013.53 11-40-810

  Total Rugged Solutions America, LLC: 18,373.53 18,373.53

RV Stripes & Graphics, Inc.

10801 RV Stripes & Graphics, Inc. 30460 one time fee set up fee for patrol v 10/07/2024 385.00 385.00 10-51-470

  Total RV Stripes & Graphics, Inc.: 385.00 385.00

S.S.V.E.C

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2036100-10/4 Electricty- City Hall 10/04/2024 647.49 647.49 10-43-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 7449100-10/4 Electricty Sign Meter 10/04/2024 70.64 70.64 10-43-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2031200-10/4 Electricity-Fire 10/04/2024 639.21 639.21 10-53-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 5668300-10/4 Electricity- Pool 10/04/2024 455.86 455.86 10-58-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1872300-10/4 Electricity Comm Center 10/04/2024 89.68 89.68 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2037200-10/4 Electricity-Tennis 10/04/2024 190.26 190.26 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2046200-10/4 Electricity- Keeline Park 10/04/2024 49.06 49.06 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 417-10/4/24 Electricity- Skyline Park 10/04/2024 38.78 38.78 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2031100-10/4 Electricity Library 10/04/2024 490.83 490.83 10-62-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2031300-10/4 Electricity- Senior Center 10/04/2024 185.23 185.23 10-68-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1872200-10/4 Electricity- Streetlight 10/04/2024 2,169.31 2,169.31 23-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1861800-10/4 Electricity- Well Cochise 10/04/2024 600.86 600.86 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2036000-10/4 Electricity- Well Gila 10/04/2024 558.84 558.84 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2041400-10/4 Electricity- Skyline Well 10/04/2024 1,051.49 1,051.49 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2070500-10/4/ Electricity- Well Howard 10/04/2024 967.76 967.76 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 7500500-10/4 Electricity- Hunt Rd 10/04/2024 236.61 236.61 52-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 417-10/4/24 Electricity- Scales at Landfill 10/04/2024 63.18 63.18 55-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 417-10/4/24 Electricity- Landfill 10/04/2024 756.47 756.47 55-40-340

  Total S.S.V.E.C: 9,261.56 9,261.56

Southwest Gas Corporation

3879 Southwest Gas Corporation 56376/093024 Gas Utility- Fire Station 09/30/2024 103.16 103.16 10-53-340

3879 Southwest Gas Corporation 28087/093024 Gas Utility- Community Center 09/30/2024 30.51 30.51 10-60-340

  Total Southwest Gas Corporation: 133.67 133.67

SW Building Inspection Service

4025 SW Building Inspection Service 10756 Code Enforcement/Zoning 09/30/2024 4,800.00 4,800.00 10-54-360

  Total SW Building Inspection Service: 4,800.00 4,800.00

Town of Huachuca City

3132 Town of Huachuca City 634 Monthly Conversion 10/04/2024 6,079.58 6,079.58 20-40-200

  Total Town of Huachuca City: 6,079.58 6,079.58

Verizon Wireless

4343 Verizon Wireless 9975691920 cell phones 10/07/2024 1,684.98 1,684.98 10-48-275

  Total Verizon Wireless: 1,684.98 1,684.98



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     5

Report dates: 10/9/2024-10/31/2024 Oct 23, 2024  10:24AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

Walden Group

10776 Walden Group 100924 Allred Polygraph 10/09/2024 225.00 225.00 10-51-465

  Total Walden Group: 225.00 225.00

Waste Management of AZ

10207 Waste Management of AZ 0054847-1571- Trash Service 10/01/2024 14,764.86 14,764.86 54-40-360

  Total Waste Management of AZ: 14,764.86 14,764.86

WEX BANK

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel-AD 10/15/2024 6.91 6.91 10-43-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Unassigned 10/15/2024 14.37 14.37 10-43-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- PD 10/15/2024 203.48 203.48 10-51-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- FD 10/15/2024 6.91 6.91 10-53-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- PW 10/15/2024 101.58 101.58 10-57-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- LB 10/15/2024 2.91 2.91 10-62-476

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel-Bus 10/15/2024 4.91 4.91 10-65-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- Water 10/15/2024 151.91 151.91 51-40-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- Sewer 10/15/2024 252.57 252.57 52-40-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- LF 10/15/2024 534.30 534.30 55-40-475

10401 WEX BANK 100304352 Fuel- Ft. Hc 10/15/2024 4.91 4.91 65-40-475

  Total WEX BANK: 1,284.76 1,284.76

  Grand Totals:  135,095.25 135,095.25

    Dated: ______________________________________________________

    Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

  ______________________________________________________

  ______________________________________________________

  ______________________________________________________

  ______________________________________________________

  ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: _____________________________________________________

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.











































































































RECIPIENT:

Town of Huachuca City
502 Gonzales Boulevard
Huachuca City, Arizona 85616
Phone: 520-249-5504

Estimate #3117

Sent on 10/10/2024

SW Desert
Images LLC
140113

SW Desert Images LLC 140113
_________________________
__________Date___________

______

Total $2,757.50

Product/Service Description Qty.

Landscape
Maintenance/200 Pima

1. Weedeat all weeds around obstacles on properties.
2. Equipment Required
a. D/R Trimmer
b. Ambusher

1

This quote is valid for the next 30 days, after which values may be subject to
change.  If the quote and attached contract provisions are to your satisfaction
please sign it and return to Southwest Desert Images, LLC.

CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1. All work will be completed in a professional manner for the amount priced
above.  Contractor reserves the right to withdraw the proposal if not accepted
within 30 days.

2. Changes to this contract will be documented and completed via written change
order.  SDI reserves the right to administer a fee of a minimum of $25 for any

Total $2,757.50

1 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



Notes Continued...

changes or change orders.  Cost differentials, either plus or minus, will be  specifically annotated on the change order.    

3. Customer agrees to provide an initial down payment of 50%.  Weekly progress payments in proportion to work completed will also be
requested for larger projects when appropriate.  Final payment will be due upon project completion.

4. The Contract description of work along with associated plan(s), detail(s) and/ or drawing(s) represent the contractual scope of work.
Please review these documents in detail to ensure all components are addressed and accurate.  Any components not specifically
addressed are not included in the estimate.

5. For your safety please understand and observe a 50 foot buffer around all equipment and Construction processes.

6. Not all planted designed or selected will be available from Arizona vendors.  If a plant is available out of area the customer will be given
an option to purchase with added costs.  This can result in construction delays or returning to job once plant is available.  Plant
substitutions in this instance are recommended

7. Payment in full is due upon job completion.  A 2% per month late payment fee will be assessed on any unpaid balances remaining after
30 days.

8. The project start date and completion date are estimated, being subject to crew availability, material availability, weather conditions, and
acts of God

CONTRACT WARRANTY PROVISIONS  

1. Irrigation/ LV Lighting   One (1) year parts and labor for complete system installations.  For partial system installations the warranty is
defined per project at the discretion of Southwest Desert Images (SDI).  Any irrigation components that have a manufacturers warranty for
longer than one year carry the manufacturers warranty for the component only. This warranty does not cover replacement of bulbs for LV
lights unless it is demonstrated to have been caused by an electrical issue.

2. Trees and Plants   1. Southwest Desert Images (SDI) will warranty most sizes of plants for three (3) months if the following conditions
are present: A. The plant was supplied and installed by SDI. B. The plant is located in a position appropriate for the health of the plant(s). C.
And the plant (excluding cactus or other plants requiring ‘no water’) is irrigated  ‘properly.’

3. SDI will not warranty plant(s) under the following conditions: A. Natural situations or other ‘Acts of God’ (i.e. unseasonably cold
temperatures, excessive winds, etc.), which affect the health of the plant. B. Animals who come into contact with the plant, causing damage
or ill health to the plant.

4. Unless specified in this contract, no plant or planting comes with staking.  Plants damaged due to not having staking will not be
warranted.

5. In the event a plant is lost, or thought to be dying, proceed with the following:

A. For a 15 gallon or larger box size plant, SDI will verify the plant health on site (where planted) and replace (including labor) if above
conditions are met. B. For a 5 gallon or smaller plant, the Owner is responsible for bringing the plant in to the Nursery on Buffalo Soldier
Trail.  SDI will replace the plant if covered under this warranty (does NOT include planting cost).

6. Artificial Turf   Artificial turf is warrantied for two years for against installation defect.  This primarily includes lifting of turf (rolls) and seam
separation.  The turf is further warrantied against manufacturing defect under manufacturer’s written warranty.   .  The manufacturers
warranty covers manufacturing defects, UV degradation, and fading.  Reference manufacturers warranty for terms, conditions and
limitations.

7. Precast Concrete Pavers   Pavers are warrantied for two years.  The warranty includes the following: 1.  Settling.  SDI will repair any
settling that occurs as long the settling occurs in the course of normal use and is not due to an act of God (flooding, etc) 2.   Soldier and
sailor course borders.  These borders are covered against stone separation or any other defect.

Signature____________________________Date_______________ 

Signature: _____________________      Date: _____________

2 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



RECIPIENT:

Town of Huachuca City
502 Gonzales Boulevard
Huachuca City, Arizona 85616
Phone: 520-249-5504

Estimate #3118

Sent on 10/10/2024

SW Desert
Images LLC
140113

SW Desert Images LLC 140113
_________________________
__________Date___________

______

Total $347.50

Product/Service Description Qty.

Landscape
Maintenance/303 Apache

1. Weedeat property
2. Equipment Required
a. Riding Mow
3.Backpack Spray

1

This quote is valid for the next 30 days, after which values may be subject to
change.  If the quote and attached contract provisions are to your satisfaction
please sign it and return to Southwest Desert Images, LLC.

CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

1. All work will be completed in a professional manner for the amount priced
above.  Contractor reserves the right to withdraw the proposal if not accepted
within 30 days.

2. Changes to this contract will be documented and completed via written change
order.  SDI reserves the right to administer a fee of a minimum of $25 for any

Total $347.50

1 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



Notes Continued...

changes or change orders.  Cost differentials, either plus or minus, will be  specifically annotated on the change order.    

3. Customer agrees to provide an initial down payment of 50%.  Weekly progress payments in proportion to work completed will also be
requested for larger projects when appropriate.  Final payment will be due upon project completion.

4. The Contract description of work along with associated plan(s), detail(s) and/ or drawing(s) represent the contractual scope of work.
Please review these documents in detail to ensure all components are addressed and accurate.  Any components not specifically
addressed are not included in the estimate.

5. For your safety please understand and observe a 50 foot buffer around all equipment and Construction processes.

6. Not all planted designed or selected will be available from Arizona vendors.  If a plant is available out of area the customer will be given
an option to purchase with added costs.  This can result in construction delays or returning to job once plant is available.  Plant
substitutions in this instance are recommended

7. Payment in full is due upon job completion.  A 2% per month late payment fee will be assessed on any unpaid balances remaining after
30 days.

8. The project start date and completion date are estimated, being subject to crew availability, material availability, weather conditions, and
acts of God

CONTRACT WARRANTY PROVISIONS  

1. Irrigation/ LV Lighting   One (1) year parts and labor for complete system installations.  For partial system installations the warranty is
defined per project at the discretion of Southwest Desert Images (SDI).  Any irrigation components that have a manufacturers warranty for
longer than one year carry the manufacturers warranty for the component only. This warranty does not cover replacement of bulbs for LV
lights unless it is demonstrated to have been caused by an electrical issue.

2. Trees and Plants   1. Southwest Desert Images (SDI) will warranty most sizes of plants for three (3) months if the following conditions
are present: A. The plant was supplied and installed by SDI. B. The plant is located in a position appropriate for the health of the plant(s). C.
And the plant (excluding cactus or other plants requiring ‘no water’) is irrigated  ‘properly.’

3. SDI will not warranty plant(s) under the following conditions: A. Natural situations or other ‘Acts of God’ (i.e. unseasonably cold
temperatures, excessive winds, etc.), which affect the health of the plant. B. Animals who come into contact with the plant, causing damage
or ill health to the plant.

4. Unless specified in this contract, no plant or planting comes with staking.  Plants damaged due to not having staking will not be
warranted.

5. In the event a plant is lost, or thought to be dying, proceed with the following:

A. For a 15 gallon or larger box size plant, SDI will verify the plant health on site (where planted) and replace (including labor) if above
conditions are met. B. For a 5 gallon or smaller plant, the Owner is responsible for bringing the plant in to the Nursery on Buffalo Soldier
Trail.  SDI will replace the plant if covered under this warranty (does NOT include planting cost).

6. Artificial Turf   Artificial turf is warrantied for two years for against installation defect.  This primarily includes lifting of turf (rolls) and seam
separation.  The turf is further warrantied against manufacturing defect under manufacturer’s written warranty.   .  The manufacturers
warranty covers manufacturing defects, UV degradation, and fading.  Reference manufacturers warranty for terms, conditions and
limitations.

7. Precast Concrete Pavers   Pavers are warrantied for two years.  The warranty includes the following: 1.  Settling.  SDI will repair any
settling that occurs as long the settling occurs in the course of normal use and is not due to an act of God (flooding, etc) 2.   Soldier and
sailor course borders.  These borders are covered against stone separation or any other defect.

Signature____________________________Date_______________ 

Signature: _____________________      Date: _____________

2 of 2 pages

Southwest Desert Images, LLC
4938 East Buffalo Soldier Trail  |  Sierra Vista, AZ 85650  |
520-803-0063  |  barbhsouthwestdesert@gmail.com  |
License#-Landscape ROC140113-- Pool ROC 327443-- Herbicide QA31961



Page 1 of 4 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-02 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA 

CITY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN CODE, TITLE 6 

“ANIMALS,” CHAPTER 6.15 “RULES AND REGULATIONS,” TO INCREASE THE 

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF ANIMALS PER HOUSEHOLD TO FIVE; ADDING 

PROVISIONS AGAINST ANIMAL HOARDING; AND AUTHORIZING HOUSING OF 

UP TO SIX CHICKENS. 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by Resolution 

No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona [the “Code”], 

and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by A.R.S. section 9-

240 (B) (28); and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to amend the Code, Title 6 “ANIMALS” to 

increase the maximum number of animals per household to five; add provisions addressing animal 

hoarding; and authorizing housing of up to six chickens in accordance with state law; and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Code, section 2.25.040, this Ordinance was first read at a 

public meeting of the Town Council on October 10, 2024, and at a subsequent meeting on October 

24, 2024. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Huachuca 

City, Arizona, as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 6.15 “Rules and Regulations,” Section 6.15.060 “Maximum amount of 

animals per household” is amended as follows, with deletions in strikeout text and additions in 

underlined text: 

All residents of the town will be limited to a maximum of four five animals per household, 

which can be any combination of dogs or cats. This limitation will exclude animals which bear 

offspring, but such offspring must either be given away, sold or turned in to the animal 

shelter when old enough to thrive on their own. Penalties for violations of this section shall 

be as provided in Section 6.20.040 (A). 



Page 2 of 4 

SECTION 2.  Chapter 6.15 “Rules and Regulations,” Section 6.15.050 “Housing” is amended as 

follows, with deletions in strikeout text and additions in underlined text: 

A. It is unlawful to cause or allow any kennel, pet shop or other place where any animal is or

may be kept to become unclean or unwholesome.

B. Every person maintaining a pet shop, veterinary hospital or veterinary facility shall post a

notice in the window of the pet shop, veterinary hospital or veterinary facility which is visible

from the outside. It shall be framed and enclosed in glass, containing the names, addresses

and telephone numbers of persons to be notified during any hour of the day or night who

can be contacted and who can proceed immediately to that location so as to permit contact

by the police department.

C. No person shall maintain a dog, or any other animal or group of animals, in such a manner

as to deprive others of the enjoyment of their lives or property due to noise, barking, 

inflicting damage or injury by jumping upon, biting, or scratching, polluting of vegetation or 

air, including the owner’s premises, or by permitting noxious or foul odors offensive to 

another person’s senses or constituting an actual or potential health hazard. 

C D. Penalties for violations of this section shall be as provided in Section 6.20.040 (A). 

SECTION 3.  Chapter 6.15 “Rules and Regulations,” Section 6.15.030 “Keeping of livestock 

prohibited” is amended as follows, with deletions in strikeout text and additions in underlined text: 

A. Except as provided in subsection (B), below, Iit is unlawful for any person to keep or cause

to be kept any horses, mules, cattle, burros, goats, sheep, swine, geese, turkeys, chickens,

guinea hens, pigeons, rabbits, ducks or other livestock or poultry or fowl within the corporate

limits of the town except on parcels of four acres or more. Anyone in possession of animals

mentioned in this section prior to February 22, 1990, shall fall under a grandfather clause

and shall not be punished. Once said animals have been removed from the property, or the

property changes owners, they can no longer fall under the grandfather clause.

B. A resident of a single-family detached residence on a lot that is less than four acres in size

may keep up to a maximum of six domestic chickens [hens, not roosters] in the backyard of 

the property, provided that the following conditions are met: 

1. All chickens shall be kept in an enclosure located in the rear or side yard of the

property at least twenty feet from a neighboring property.  The size of the

enclosure shall be a maximum of two hundred square feet with a maximum

height of eight feet, provided that any enclosure on a lot less than one acre in

size to be shorter than the fence line of the property.  the enclosure shall be

maintained and manure picked up and disposed of or composted at least

twice weekly.



Page 3 of 4 

2. Any composted manure shall be kept in a way that prevents migration of

insects.

3. All water sources for chickens shall have adequate overflow drainage.

4. All feed for chickens shall be stored in insect-proof and rodent-proof

containers.

5. All chickens are prohibited from running at large.

B C. The police department and town clerk must approve livestock being exhibited in any 

animal show. 

C D. Penalties for violations of this section shall be as provided in Section 6.20.040 (A). 

SECTION 4.  All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies, and 

parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, or any part hereof, are hereby 

repealed.   

SECTION 5. If any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be 

invalid or unenforceable by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall 

not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 

SECTION 6.  As provided in the Code, Section 6.20.040, penalties for Animal Code violations 

may be civil or criminal, and may be punished as follows: 

A. First offense: $50 fine; Second offense: $100.00 fine; Third and subsequent offenses:

criminal class 1 misdemeanor, punishable as determined by the court, not to exceed $2,500

fine, six months in jail and three years’ probation.

B. Each offense: criminal class 1 misdemeanor, punishable as determined by the court, not to

exceed $2,500 fine, six months in jail and three years’ probation.

SECTION 6. The Town Clerk is hereby directed, pursuant to the Code, sections 2.25.080 and 

2.25.090, to post this Ordinance in three or more public places within the Town, and to publish 

this Ordinance as required by A.R.S. 9-812 and 39-204. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 24th DAY OF 

OCTOBER, 2024. 

________________________________ 

        Johann Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 



Page 4 of 4 

Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

___________________________________ 

Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 3 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN CODE 

TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” 

SECTION 18.100.260 “KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK AND PETS,” TO REVISE ZONING 

REGULATIONS FOR KEEPING LIVESTOCK AND PROVIDING FOR THE KEEPING 

OF DOMESTIC CHICKENS, AND AMENDING CHAPTER 18.10 “DEFINITIONS” TO 

ADD A DEFINITION FOR FOWL.   

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by Resolution 

No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona [the “Code”], 

and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by A.R.S. 9-240 (B) 

(28) and Town Ordinance No. 15-02; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (A) and (C), the Town is empowered to adopt 

and amend zoning regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it would be in the best interest of the 

health, safety and welfare of the Town’s residents to revise the Town’s zoning regulations 

pertaining to hoophouses and polyhouses; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 24, 2024, to receive public comment, 

pro and con, for adopting the following Code amendment; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (I) and (J), the Town Council has considered the 

individual property rights and personal liberties of the residents of the Town, as well as the 

probable impact of the proposed Code amendments on the cost to construct housing for sale or 

rent; and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Code, section 2.25.040, this Ordinance was first read at a 

public meeting of the Town Council on October 10, 2024, and at a subsequent meeting on October 

24, 2024.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Huachuca City, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Chapter 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL 

REGULATIONS,” Section 18.100.260 “Keeping of livestock and pets,” is amended, by replacing 

the current text with the following underlined text: 



Page 2 of 3 

18.100.260 Keeping of livestock and pets. 

A. Horses, burros, donkeys and mules are permitted within the town, subject to the

following provisions:

1. The parcel of land on which they are kept is a minimum of four acres.

2. There shall be a minimum of one acre per one animal maintained, exclusive

of minimum dwelling site requirements.

3. No animal shall be stabled any less than 50 feet from any residence on the

property or 100 feet from dwellings on other properties.

B. No cattle, sheep, goats, swine, rooster, guinea hens, pigeons, or other livestock shall

be kept or maintained on any property within the town, except on parcels of four

acres or more.

C. Single family detached residences on lots that are less than four acres in size are

allowed to keep up to six (6) domestic chicken hens in an enclosure located in the

backyard of the property, subject to the following provisions:

1. The enclosure must be at least twenty (20) feet from a neighboring property.

2. The size of the enclosure shall not exceed a maximum of two hundred (200)

square feet and a height not taller than eight (8) feet; however, an enclosure

located on a lot less than one (1) acre in size shall be shorter than the fence

line of the property.

3. The enclosure must be maintained and manure picked up and disposed of or

composted at least twice weekly.

4. Water sources must be clean and with adequate overflow drainage.

5. Feed should be of proper nutrient value for fowl.

6. Fowl should not be permitted to be at large.

7. Regular inspections of the fowl enclosure and animals shall be conducted by

the town’s animal control officers at will.

D. All town, county and state sanitary and health regulations, as well as Title 6, shall be

complied with and met.

E. This section shall not be construed, however, as prohibiting the keeping of ordinary

domestic pet animals upon property within the town, as allowed under Title 6.

F. No exotic or unusual types of pet animals or reptiles shall be allowed within the

town, except as allowed by Title 6.

G. Nothing in this section on livestock will be construed to permit any animals, whether

permitted or not permitted within a particular zone, to run free and uncontrolled.



Page 3 of 3 

Any and all of such animals are subject to seizure and impoundment by the town as 

provided in Title 6. 

SECTION 2. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Section 18.10.010 “Definitions,” is 

amended to add a definition for fowl, as follows with additions in underlined text: 

“Fowl” means, for purposes of Title 18, a domestic chicken hen, not a rooster. 

SECTION 3. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies, 

and parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, or any part hereof, are hereby 

repealed.  

SECTION 4. If any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unenforceable by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 

SECTION 5 The Town Clerk is hereby directed, pursuant to the Code, sections 2.25.080 

and 2.25.090, to post this Ordinance in three or more public places within the Town, and to publish 

this Ordinance as required by A.R.S. 9-812 and 39-204 (C)(3). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 24TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 

2024. 

_______________________ 

Johann Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

___________________________________ 

Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 2 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN CODE 

TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.35 “R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS,” SECTION 

18.35.030 “PERMITTED CONDITIONAL USES”, AND CHAPTER 18.10 

“DEFINITIONS” TO DEFINE VACATION RENTALS AND SHORT-TERM RENTALS 

AND TO MAKE THEM CONDITIONAL USES.   

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by Resolution 

No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona [the “Code”], 

and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by A.R.S. 9-240 (B) 

(28) and Town Ordinance No. 15-02; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (A) and (C), the Town is empowered to adopt 

and amend zoning regulations and conditional property uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it would be in the best interest of the 

health, safety and welfare of the Town’s residents to revise the Town’s zoning regulations 

pertaining to vacation and short-term rentals; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 24, 2024, to receive public comment, 

pro and con, for adopting the following Code amendment; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (I) and (J), the Town Council has considered the 

individual property rights and personal liberties of the residents of the Town, as well as the 

probable impact of the proposed Code amendments on the cost to construct housing for sale or 

rent; and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Code, section 2.25.040, this Ordinance was first read at a 

public meeting of the Town Council on October 10, 2024, and at a subsequent meeting on October 

24, 2024.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Huachuca City, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Chapter 18.35 “R-1 RESIDENTIAL 

DISTRICTS,” section 18.35.030 “Permitted conditional uses”, is amended to add subsection (E), 

as follows with additions in underlined text: 



Page 2 of 2 

E. Vacation rentals and short-term rentals.  Require a business license issued by the Town

clerk.  

SECTION 2. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Section 18.10.010 “Definitions,” is 

amended to add a definition for vacation rental and short-term rental, as follows with additions in 

underlined text: 

“Vacation rental or “Short-term rental” means any individually or collectively owned single-

family or one-to-four-family house or dwelling unit or any unit or group of units in a 

condominium or cooperative that is also a transient public lodging establishment or owner-

occupied residential home offered for transient use if the accommodations are not classified 

for property taxation.  Does not include a unit that is used for any nonresidential use, 

including retail, restaurant, banquet space, event center or another similar use. 

SECTION 3. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies, 

and parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, or any part hereof, are hereby 

repealed.  

SECTION 4. If any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unenforceable by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 

SECTION 5 The Town Clerk is hereby directed, pursuant to the Code, sections 2.25.080 

and 2.25.090, to post this Ordinance in three or more public places within the Town, and to publish 

this Ordinance as required by A.R.S. 9-812 and 39-204 (C)(3). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 24TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 

2024. 

_______________________ 

Johann Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

___________________________________ 

Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 3 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-05 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN CODE 

TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” TO ADD 

NEW SECTION 18.100.290 “HOOPHOUSES AND POLYHOUSES”, AND CHAPTER 

18.10 “DEFINITIONS” TO DEFINE HOOPHOUSES AND POLYHOUSES AND TO 

ESTABLISH REGULATIONS CONCERNING THEIR CONSTRUCTION, PLACEMENT 

AND USE.   

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by Resolution 

No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona [the “Code”], 

and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by A.R.S. 9-240 (B) 

(28) and Town Ordinance No. 15-02; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (A) and (C), the Town is empowered to adopt 

and amend zoning regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it would be in the best interest of the 

health, safety and welfare of the Town’s residents to revise the Town’s zoning regulations 

pertaining to hoophouses and polyhouses; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 24, 2024, to receive public comment, 

pro and con, for adopting the following Code amendment; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (I) and (J), the Town Council has considered the 

individual property rights and personal liberties of the residents of the Town, as well as the 

probable impact of the proposed Code amendments on the cost to construct housing for sale or 

rent; and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Code, section 2.25.040, this Ordinance was first read at a 

public meeting of the Town Council on October 10, 2024, and at a subsequent meeting on October 

24, 2024.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Huachuca City, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Chapter 18.100 “SUPPLEMENTAL 

REGULATIONS,” is amended to add new section 18.100.290 “Hoophouses and polyhouses”, as 

follows with additions in underlined text: 



Page 2 of 3 

18.100.290 Hoophouses and polyhouses. 

A. Notwithstanding any other law, construction of a hoophouse or polyhouse is

exempt from municipal building permit requirements if the hoophouse or

polyhouse meets all the following requirements:

1. The structure does not have a permanent anchoring system.  The structure

shall be anchored in a way that allows removal and relocation of the

structure at the discretion of the property owner and in a manner that

prevents unintended detachment or relocation.

2. There is no temporary or permanent storage of solvents, fertilizers, gases or

other chemicals or flammable materials.

3. The structure is not wider than thirty-one feet (31’) and there is an

unobstructed path of not more than one hundred fifty feet (150’) from any

point to a door or fully accessible wall.

4. The covering of the structure is of material not greater than twelve (12) mils

in thickness, that conforms to the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)

standard methods of fire tests for flame propagation of textiles and files

((NFPA 701) and that yields approximately four pounds (4 lbs) of maximum

impact resistance to provide egress through the wall.

B. Notwithstanding subsection (A) of this section, if a hoophouse or polyhouse is

located on a lot less than one acre in size within a residential community, the height

of the structure shall be no greater than five feet (5’) above the fence line or a total

height of thirteen feet (13’), whichever is less.

C. Notwithstanding subsection (A) of this section, if a hoophouse or polyhouse

contains a device that is subject to existing municipal electrical or mechanical codes

and regulations, a permit shall be required for the device.  If the hoophouse or

polyhouse is connected to a potable water system, a permit shall be required for the

backflow prevention devices contained within the potable water system.

D. Notwithstanding subsection (A) of this section, a hoophouse or polyhouse shall

comply with all height, setback and lot coverage requirements contained in the

municipal zoning and land use regulations for detached accessory buildings or

structures.

E. A site plan shall be submitted for administrative review by the Town building official

and/or Town zoning administrator, to include the materials used in the construction

of a hoophouse or polyhouse, to determine if the planned construction meets the

requirements of this section.



Page 3 of 3 

SECTION 2. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Section 18.10.010 “Definitions,” is 

amended to add definitions for hoophouse or polyhouse, and permanent anchoring system, as 

follows with additions in underlined text: 

“Hoophouse or polyhouse” means a greenhouse used exclusively for producing and storing 

live plants. 

“Permanent anchoring system” means a structurally engineered assembly of components 

designed to affix a structure to the ground on a permanent basis.  Includes permanent 

foundations and anchors. 

SECTION 3. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies, 

and parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, or any part hereof, are hereby 

repealed.  

SECTION 4. If any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unenforceable by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 

SECTION 5 The Town Clerk is hereby directed, pursuant to the Code, sections 2.25.080 

and 2.25.090, to post this Ordinance in three or more public places within the Town, and to publish 

this Ordinance as required by A.R.S. 9-812 and 39-204 (C)(3). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 24TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 

2024. 

_______________________ 

Johann Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

___________________________________ 

Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 3 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-06 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN CODE 

TITLE 18 “ZONING,” CHAPTER 18.135 “AMENDMENTS,” SECTION 18.135.030 

“APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENT,” AND SECTION 18.135.060 “PROTEST 

AGAINST AMENDMENTS,” TO ESTABLISH REGULATIONS CONCERNING THE 

FILING, PROCESSING AND PROTESTING OF ZONING AMENDMENTS.   

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Huachuca City has adopted by Resolution 

No. 84-002 a code known as the Town Code of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona [the “Code”], 

and has amended and republished the Code from time to time, as authorized by A.R.S. 9-240 (B) 

(28) and Town Ordinance No. 15-02; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (A) and (C), the Town is empowered to adopt 

and amend zoning regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that it would be in the best interest of the 

health, safety and welfare of the Town’s residents to revise the Town’s zoning regulations 

pertaining to the filing, processing and protesting of zoning amendments; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 24, 2024, to receive public comment, 

pro and con, for adopting the following Code amendment; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-462.01 (I) and (J), the Town Council has considered the 

individual property rights and personal liberties of the residents of the Town, as well as the 

probable impact of the proposed Code amendments on the cost to construct housing for sale or 

rent; and 

WHEREAS, as required by the Code, section 2.25.040, this Ordinance was first read at a 

public meeting of the Town Council on October 10, 2024, and at a subsequent meeting on October 

24, 2024.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Huachuca City, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Chapter 18.135 “AMENDMENTS,” 

Section 18.135.030 “Applications for amendment,” is amended as follows by replacing the current 

text with the following underlined text: 



Page 2 of 3 

A. Applications for amendment of these regulations shall be made to the planning and

zoning commission, or zoning hearing officer in their absence, on a standard form

provided for that purpose and shall be signed by a real property owner in the area

for which amendment is applied.

1. If the application includes other property in addition to that owned by the

applicant, there shall be filed by the applicant on a form provided therefor, a

petition in favor of the request signed by the real property owners

representing at least 75 percent of the land area to be included in the

application. Such petition shall be filed and checked for authenticity of

ownership before the application is accepted.

2. If the application includes properties owned by more than one owner, the

zoning administrator shall notify, by certified mail, all property owners

included in the area proposed for change. Such notice shall be postmarked

not later than 15 days prior to any required public hearing of the application.

B. The Town shall determine whether an application for zoning amendment is

administratively complete within thirty (30) days after receipt of the application.  The

Town shall issue a written or electronic notice of administrative completeness or

deficiencies to the applicant.

1. If the Town determines that the application is not administratively complete,

the Town shall include a comprehensive list of the specific deficiencies in the

written or electronic notice provided to the applicant.  The Town shall follow

these procedures until the application is administratively complete.

2. The Town shall determine whether a re-submitted zoning amendment

application is administratively complete within 15 days after receipt of the re-

submitted application.

3. The Town shall approve or deny an application for zoning amendment within

one hundred eighty (180) days after determining that the application is

administratively complete.

4. Notwithstanding Subsection (B)(1) of this Section, the Town may extend the

timeframe to approve or deny the zoning amendment application beyond

one hundred eighty (180) days for either of the following reasons:

a. For extenuating circumstances, the Town may grant a one-time

extension of not more than thirty (30) days.

b. If an applicant requests an extension, the Town may grant extensions

of thirty (30) days for each extension granted.

5. This Section does not apply to land that is designated as a district of historical

significance or an area that is designated as historic on the National Register

of Historic Places or planned area developments.

SECTION 2. The Code, Title 18 “ZONING,” Chapter 18.135 “AMENDMENTS,” 

Section 18.135.060 “Protests against amendments,” is amended as follows with deletions in 

strikeout text and additions in underlined text: 



Page 3 of 3 

If the owners of 20 percent or more, either of the area of the lots included in a proposed 

change, or of those immediately adjacent in the rear or any side thereof extending 150 feet 

from the street frontage of the opposite lots, of the property by area and number of lots, 

tracts and condominium units within the zoning area of the affected property, excluding 

government owned property, file a protest in writing against a proposed amendment, it the 

change shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of three-fourths of all 

members of the council. If any members of the council are unable to vote on such a 

question because of a conflict of interest, then the required number of votes for passage of 

the question shall be three-fourths of the remaining membership of the council, provided, 

that such required number of votes shall in no event be less than a majority of the full 

membership of the council.  For the purposes of this Section, the vote shall be rounded to 

the nearest whole number.  A protest filed pursuant to this Section shall be signed by the 

property owners, excluding government owned property, opposing the proposed 

amendment and filed in the office of the clerk of the Town not later than 12:00 noon one 

business day before the date on which the council will vote on the proposed amendment. 

SECTION 3. All ordinances, parts of ordinances, resolutions, parts of resolutions, policies, 

and parts of policies in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, or any part hereof, are hereby 

repealed.  

SECTION 4. If any section, subsection or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held 

to be invalid or unenforceable by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision 

shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions hereof. 

SECTION 5 The Town Clerk is hereby directed, pursuant to the Code, sections 2.25.080 

and 2.25.090, to post this Ordinance in three or more public places within the Town, and to publish 

this Ordinance as required by A.R.S. 9-812 and 39-204 (C)(3). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 24TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 

2024. 

_______________________ 

Johann Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

___________________________________ 

Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 1 

Town of Huachuca City 
PROCLAMATION NO. 2024-18 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER, 2024, AS “NATIVE 
AMERICAN HERITAGE MONTH.”   

WHEREAS, for more than a century, Arizona has celebrated a diverse culture, and today, Arizona is 
home to 22 various Tribal Nations and communities; and 

WHEREAS, the land of these Tribal Nations comprises approximately 28 percent of Arizona’s land 
base; and 

WHEREAS, our citizens of Native American heritage contribute to and enrich our way of life, while 
preserving the unique customs and traditions of their ancestors; and 

WHEREAS, the diverse Native American cultures shape the Southern Arizona experience and 
influence our art, literature, music, food, and faith, thereby enriching our region; and 

WHEREAS, Native Americans, like famous World War II Marine Corps flying ace, Pappy Boyington, 
and Arizona’s own, William Alchesay, have earned our Nation’s highest military decorations, and have 
served and perished in our Nation’s armed forces through every war effort.   

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Johann R. Wallace, Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona, by the 
authority vested in me by the laws of the State of Arizona and Town Code hereby proclaim November, 
2024, as Native American Heritage Month in the Town of Huachuca City.  I call upon the citizens of 
the Town to celebrate the seminal contributions of Native Americans to our region and honor their 
culture and spirit.  

PROCLAIMED by the Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, Cochise County, Arizona, this 24th day 
of October, 2024.   

_________________________________ 
Johann R. Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk  Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 



Page 1 of 1 

Town of Huachuca City 
PROCLAMATION NO. 2024-19 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER, 2024, AS “MILITARY 
FAMILY APPRECIATION MONTH.”   

WHEREAS, Military Family Appreciation Month was established in 1993 by the Armed Services 
YMCA, with the U.S. Government recognizing the occasion every year since; and 

WHEREAS, November is a time, by tradition, for family celebrations. It is also a month that we set 
aside time to honor veterans and the military family - a time to recognize their sacrifices and celebrate 
their successes; and 

WHEREAS, families provide our servicemembers with invaluable encouragement and love, and 
manage the home front while their loved ones are deployed; and 

WHEREAS, during Military Family Month, we thank military families for the tremendous contributions they 
make in support of our service members, the military mission, and the nation; and 

WHEREAS, as we approach the winter holiday season when families across the country come together, 
we pay special tribute to our deployed forces and their families, who are separated this holiday season.   

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Johann R. Wallace, Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona, by the 
authority vested in me by the laws of the State of Arizona and Town Code hereby proclaim November, 
2024, as Military Family Appreciation Month in the Town of Huachuca City.   

I call upon the citizens of the Town to acknowledge the exceptional sacrifice, resiliency and courage of 
military families who put their lives on hold so our military can protect our homeland.  

PROCLAIMED by the Mayor of the Town of Huachuca City, Cochise County, Arizona, this 24th day 
of October, 2024.   

_________________________________ 
Johann R. Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ _________________________________ 
Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk  Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 


	10-24-24 Regular Meeting Agenda ver 6.pdf
	10-10-24 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	Payment approval report 10-9 thru 10-31.pdf
	Spencer report- August
	estimate_3117.pdf
	estimate_3118.pdf
	Proclamation 2024-18 Native American Heritage Month.pdf
	Proclamation 2024-19 Military Family Appreciation Month.pdf
	2024-02 Animal Code Changes (002).pdf
	2024-03 Zoning Amendments Livestock.pdf
	2024-04 Zoning Short Term Rentals.pdf
	2024-05 Zoning Hoophouses and Polyhouses.pdf
	2024-06 Zoning Applications for Amendments.pdf

